
 
 

 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND GROWTH 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 
19 February 2020 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 
A Meeting of the Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee will be held in 
Committee Room 1, Marmion House, Lichfield Street, Tamworth, B79 7BZ on 
Thursday, 27th February, 2020 at 6.00 pm. Members of the Committee are requested 
to attend. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
Chief Executive 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

NON CONFIDENTIAL 
 
 
1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10) 

3 Declarations of Interest  

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



 To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (personal and/or 
personal and prejudicial) in any matters which are to be considered at this 
meeting. 

 
When Members are declaring a personal interest or personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of which they have dispensation, they should 
specify the nature of such interest.  Members should leave the room if they 
have a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of which they do not 
have a dispensation.   
 

 

4 Update from the Chair  

 To receive an update from the Chair. 
 

5 Responses to Reports of the Infrastructure Safety & Growth Committee  

 Update on responses received to Reports of the Infrastructure Safety & Growth 
Committee. 
 

6 Consideration of Matters referred to the Infrastructure Safety & Growth 
Committee from Cabinet or Council  

 (Discussion item) 
 

7 2019/20 Forward Plan  

 (Discussion item – link to Forward Plan is attached) 
 
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0&bcr=1 
 

8 Working Group Updates  

 To receive updates from any Working Groups 
 

9 Infrastructure Safety & Growth Scrutiny Committee Work Plan (Pages 11 - 
12) 

 (Update and discussion on the Infrastructure Safety & Growth Scrutiny Work 
Plan) 
 

10 Exclusion of the Press and Public  

http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0&bcr=1


 To consider excluding the Press and Public from the meeting by passing the 
following resolution:- 
 
“That in accordance with the provisions of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, 
and Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the following business on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public  interest in disclosing the 
information to the public” 
 
At the time this agenda is published no representations have been received that 
this part of the meeting should be open to the public. 
 
 

11 Future High Street Fund (Pages 13 - 22) 

 (Report of the Portfolio Holder for Heritage and Growth) 
 

   _________________________________________ 
 
Access arrangements 

If you have any particular access requirements when attending the meeting, please contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk. We can 
then endeavour to ensure that any particular requirements you may have are catered for. 
 
Filming of Meetings 

The public part of this meeting may be filmed and broadcast.  Please refer to the Council’s 

Protocol on Filming, Videoing, Photography and Audio Recording at Council meetings which can 

be found here for further information. 

The Protocol requires that no members of the public are to be deliberately filmed.  Where 

possible, an area in the meeting room will be set aside for videoing, this is normally from the front 

of the public gallery.  This aims to allow filming to be carried out whilst minimising the risk of the 

public being accidentally filmed.    

If a member of the public is particularly concerned about accidental filming, please consider the 

location of any cameras when selecting a seat. 

FAQs 

For further information about the Council’s Committee arrangements please see the FAQ page 

here 

 
 
 
To Councillors: S Goodall, A Farrell, M Bailey, R Bilcliff, P Brindley, T Clements, R Ford, 
Dr S Peaple, P Thurgood and R Claymore 

mailto:democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/councillors_docs/TBC-Filming-Protocol.docx
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/council-meetings-faqs


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1  
 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND 
GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

HELD ON 28th JANUARY 2020 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor S Goodall (Chair), Councillors A Farrell, M Bailey, 

R Bilcliff, P Brindley, T Clements, R Ford, Dr S Peaple and 
P Thurgood 

 
CABINET: 

 

Councillor S Doyle and Councillor J Chesworth 

 
The following officers were present: Tina Mustafa (Assistant Director 
Neighbourhoods), Joanne Sands (Assistant Director Partnerships), Lee Birch 
(Head of Neighbourhood Services) and Jo Hutchison (Democratic Services, 
Scrutiny and Elections Officer) 
 
The Chair welcomed Councillor Ford who had been recently appointed as a 
member of this Committee 
 

58 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The Minutes of the previous meeting of the Infrastructure Safety & Growth 
Scrutiny Committee held on 17th December 2019 were approved and signed as a 
correct record. 
 
(Moved by Councillor S Goodall and seconded by Councillor T Clements) 
 

59 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

60 UPDATE FROM THE CHAIR  
 
The Chair reported that he intended to request an update for the Committee at its 
March meeting on the recommendations made by Cabinet at its meeting on 1 
August 2019 in response to the report of this Committee on Electric Vehicle 
Charging in Tamworth. 
 
The Chair further reported that he had recently attended a Local Government 
Association scrutiny training course which was good and that one of the key 
takeaways was that whilst improvements could still be made in the way that 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

28 January 2020 

 

 

2 
 

scrutiny was managed in Tamworth there were already examples of good 
practice. 
 
 

61 MOTION WITHOUT NOTICE TO AMEND THE ORDER OF BUSINESS  
 
To change the order of business in the agenda, proposing that items 8 and 9 be 
dealt with before item 4, under rule 9.1.3. 
 
(Moved by Councillor S Goodall and seconded by Councillor Dr S Peaple) 
 
 

62 PSPO RENEWAL ACCESS ROAD TO DOSTHILL HALL  
 
The Chair welcomed the Portfolio Holder for Regulatory and Community safety 
and the Assistant Director Partnerships to the meeting.  The Report of the 
Assistant Director Partnerships on the Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) 
Renewal – Access Road to Dosthill Hall was received by the Committee.  The 
Committee considered the renewal of the PSPO following the public consultation 
undertaken and the request to delegate authority to the Portfolio Holder for 
Regulatory and Community Safety for implementation. 
 
The Assistant Director summarised the responses from the consultation which 
had closed on 17th January 2020. The responses had been generally supportive 
with 98% of responses agreeing with the proposed restrictions.  It was reported 
that the PSPO had been effective in deterring anti-social behaviour and the 
Committee discussed its continued proportionality and relevance.    
 
RESOLVED that the Committee approve the delegation to the Portfolio Holder for 
Regulatory and Community Safety for the renewal of the Access Road to Dosthill 
Hall Public Space Protection Order (as set out in the report). 
 
(Moved by Councillor Dr S Peaple and seconded by Councillor S Goodall). 
 

63 UPDATE ON CCTV IMPLEMENTATION  
 
The Chair introduced the Portfolio Holder for Culture and Operational Services 
and the Assistant Director, Neighbourhoods, who were attending to provide an 
update on the implementation of the CCTV review which had been previously 
considered by this Committee. 
 
The Assistant Director introduced the Head of Safety Security and Emergency 
Planning at West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA), who had worked with 
Officers at Tamworth Borough Council to develop a design and costings proposal 
for this project. 
 
The Assistant Director, Neighbourhoods explained the steps which the project 
had gone through including and the options considered before Cabinet approved 
a shared service model.  All of this Committee’s recommendations were built into 
the shared service model.   

Page 6



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

28 January 2020 

 

 

3 
 

 
It was reported that whilst TUPE would have applied to relevant Tamworth 
Borough Council staff, arrangements had been agreed that meant that no council 
staff would transfer to the WMCA and that accordingly WMCA were recruiting 
appropriately.  A CCTV Shared Service Lead had been appointed and would be 
in post soon.   
 
It was reported that the installation of the new fibre was progressing well.  At the 
Control Centre there would be a dedicated bank of screens showing Tamworth 
cameras and that the footage displayed would be the most relevant intelligence 
led content.    
 
The Committee sought and received clarification in the following areas: 

 The extent to which incidents would be able to be tracked across 
geographic areas.  It was reported that to the extent that the WMCA did 
operate cameras in the relevant area, this would be possible and the 
WMCA also had links with CCTV operators in other adjoining areas.  In 
addition the WMCA operated some regional transport cameras and there 
were arrangements in place with Highways England.  

 How the staffing of the banks of cameras would work.  It was reported that 
there would be an operator viewing the Tamworth bank of cameras, and in 
addition there would be at least 4 other operators in the Control Room.  
This allowed some flexibility if there was an incident in one specific area.  It 
was reported that whilst the WMCA’s knowledge of the Tamworth area was 
being built up there would be an expectation that the Tamworth operator 
would be dedicated to that bank of cameras, and that whilst there could be 
no contractual provision in this respect there would be governance routes 
to be followed if the outcomes expected were not achieved. 

 How local knowledge was being preserved given that no staff were moving 
from the council to the WMCA.  It was reported that activities were 
underway to ensure that all procedures used by current CCTV were clearly 
documented and knowledge captured and staff from WMCA would be 
visiting Tamworth to become more familiar with the geographic area. 

 How any large events such as the Commonwealth Games in Birmingham 
could affect the service for Tamworth. The Head of Safety, Security and 
Emergency Planning assured the Committee that the arrangements that 
were put in place for such large events meant that there would be no 
detrimental impact on Tamworth. 

 How many cameras are there and how long the footage is retained for.  It 
was reported that there would be 78 cameras initially, which would fit 
comfortably on a single video wall.  In terms of retention this would be 
retained in accordance with Tamworth Borough Council’s retention policy 
which was for 31 days unless required for purposes of a crime or incident. 

 How bollard management in the town centre worked with the CCTV 
arrangements.  It was reported that once the bollard system was fully 
operational, the system would be operated (rise and fall) by the WMCA.  
The operation would be in accordance with data provided by the council in 
terms of when and by whom access could be granted. However 
responsibility for the bollard infrastructure and its maintenance remained a 
Staffordshire County Council responsibility and that the bollards remained 

Page 7



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

28 January 2020 

 

 

4 
 

down until Staffordshire County Council had confirmed that they were 
ready to be fully operated. 

 Staffordshire Police’s views on the revised CCTV provision.  The Assistant 
Director Partnerships reported that the Police had been supportive and 
that they had invested in a system to ensure they could remotely access 
the content, in accordance with relevant legislation. 

 When appraisals of the camera provision in the area would start.  It was 
reported that these appraisals would start post April 2020, and that aspects 
of this work could be brought back to the Committee for its consideration in 
12-18 months’ time. 

 
The Assistant Director reported that the project remained on course to deliver the 
anticipated savings over 5 years, that there would be annual reports to Cabinet, 
and that there would be accelerated investment in the CCTV infrastructure in the 
early years of the Shared Service.  It was further reported that Staffordshire 
Police would be able to have improved digital connectivity within appropriate 
PACE controls. 
 
The Assistant Director reported that Councillor Chesworth intended to invite all 
this Committee’s members to the WMCA Control Room.  
 
The Committee thanked all the attendees for a very informative update.   
 
The Committee requested that a further update on the implementation of the new 
CCTV Service be brought back to this Committee in 12 months’ time.  The 
Committee agreed to add this to it’s Work Plan. 
 

64 RESPONSES TO REPORTS OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY & 
GROWTH COMMITTEE  
 
There were no recommendations from this Committee to Cabinet which had not 
been previously reported on. 
 

65 CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REFERRED TO THE INFRASTRUCTURE 
SAFETY & GROWTH COMMITTEE FROM CABINET OR COUNCIL  
 
There were no items for this Committee’s consideration. 
 

66 2019/20 FORWARD PLAN  
 
The Committee considered the recently added items on the Forward Plan.  The 
chair highlighted that the ICT Strategy had been added as a new item to the 
Forward Plan which could be a matter for this Committee’s consideration. 
 
The Chair agreed that further clarity on the scope of the strategy was required 
and the Committee agreed to form a working group to consider this item ahead of 
it being considered at an additional Committee meeting towards the end of 
February.  The working group was agreed to comprise the Chair and Councillors 
Ford and Bilcliff. 
 

Page 8



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

28 January 2020 

 

 

5 
 

 
67 WORKING GROUP UPDATES  

 
There were no working group updates. 
 

68 INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY & GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 
PLAN  
 
The Committee considered its Work Plan and updated it as follows: 
 

Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Work Plan 

 
 

Work Plan 2019 - 2020 

DATE SUBJECT 

XX February 2020 ICT Strategy (also working group to be set up:  
SG, RB and RF) 

31 March 2020 Electric Vehicle Charging progress update  

31 March 2020 Crime Figures for Tamworth and Community 
safety – Annual update - Staffordshire Police 
invited 

March / April 2020 Review of Taxi Licensing Policy – Points 
System – 12 month review 

When clarity on legislation  Fire Safety Update 

Q2 2020/2021 Waste Management developments  

September 2020 (tbc) Development of Tamworth Community Offer – 
interim update 

September 2020 (tbc) Renewal of PSPO Dog Control 

September 2020 (tbc) Renewal of PSPO Alcohol Restriction 

January 2021 CCTV implementation review 

TBC Castle Update 

TBC Review of taxi evidence 

TBC Public Transport and taxis 

TBC People Helping People ( Community Safety) 

TBC Town Centre Growth 

TBC Events Offer (possible working group) 

TBC Review of West Midlands Combined Authority 
– Green / Climate Strategy – targets and data 
for Tamworth 

TBC Development of Tamworth Community Offer – 
review of draft Strategy 
 

Page 9



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

28 January 2020 

 

 

6 
 

 
 

  

 Chair  
 

 

Upcoming Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Meetings 

XXX February 2020 (additional meeting) 

31 March 2020 

Page 10



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Work Plan 

 
 
 

 

Work Plan 2019 - 2020 

DATE SUBJECT 

27th February 2020 Future High Street Fund 

TBC 2020 ICT Strategy (also working group to be set up:  
SG, RB and RF) 

31 March 2020 Electric Vehicle Charging progress update  

31 March 2020 Crime Figures for Tamworth and Community 
safety – Annual update - Staffordshire Police 
invited 

March / April 2020 Review of Taxi Licensing Policy – Points 
System – 12 month review 

When clarity on legislation  Fire Safety Update 

Q2 2020/2021 Waste Management developments  

September 2020 (tbc) Development of Tamworth Community Offer – 
interim update 

September 2020 (tbc) Renewal of PSPO Dog Control 

September 2020 (tbc) Renewal of PSPO Alcohol Restriction 

January 2021 CCTV implementation review 

TBC Castle Update 

TBC Review of taxi evidence 

TBC Public Transport and taxis 

TBC People Helping People ( Community Safety) 

TBC Town Centre Growth 

TBC Events Offer (possible working group) 

TBC Review of West Midlands Combined Authority 
– Green / Climate Strategy – targets and data 
for Tamworth 

TBC Development of Tamworth Community Offer – 
review of draft Strategy 
 

Upcoming Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Meetings 

27th February 2020 (additional meeting) 

31 March 2020 

Page 11

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 13

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	9 Infrastructure Safety & Growth Scrutiny Committee Work Plan
	11 Future High Street Fund
	Future High Street Fund


